
Town of Southern Shores 
5375 N. Virginia Dare Trail, Southern Shores, NC  27949 

Phone 252-261-2394 / Fax 252-255-0876 
www.southernshores-nc.gov 

February 20, 2018 

COUNCIL MEETING - 9:00 A.M.-PITTS CENTER 

JOINT MEETING WITH SOUTHERN SHORES VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

and STRATEGIC PLANNING 

1. Opening

A. Call Meeting to Order (all citizens interested in offering Public Comment are reminded to sign up.) 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Moment of Silence 

2. Special Recognition of Chairman Bob Woodard, Dare County Board of Commissioners - Mayor Bennett

3. General Public Comment (Limit: 3 minutes per speaker.)

4. Joint Meeting with SSVFD, Inc. Board of Directors

Call to Order – SSVFD Inc., Treasurer Maylon White and Mayor Bennett 
(After opening comments, the Fire Chief and Town Manager will be recognized for a proposed discussion 
agenda regarding (1) renewal of the existing Fire Services Contract (expires 2019) between the two 
entities, and (2) Update on the current Design Process of the SSVFD-Proposed New Fire Station. That 
agenda proposed to be facilitated by Southern Shores citizen Pat Regan). 

Lunch Recess (One Hour - Lunch not provided) 

5. Council Other Strategic Planning - Council Members to advocate for discussion and propose for adoption by the
full Council, any specific planning objectives for the Town staff to incorporate into appropriate operations.

6. General Public Comment (Limit: 3 minutes per speaker.)

7. Adjourn

(TAB 1)



1. Fire Service Memorandum of Agreement 

2. Fire Service Real Estate 

3. SSVFD-2009-to-2019 SERVICE CONTRACT 

4. MAY 12 MINUTES FY2010-2011 Requested Adjustment Deliberation 

5. JUNE 1 MINUTES FY2010-2011 Requested Adjustment Deliberation 

6. Adjustment June 15, 2010 Budget Adoption 

7. SSVFD 2015-2016 BUDGET 

8. SSVFD 2016-2017 BUDGET 

9. SSVFD 2017-2018 BUDGET 

10. SSVFD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2015 AND JUNE 30, 2014 

11. SSVFD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2016 AND JUNE 30, 2015 

12. SSVFD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2017 AND JUNE 30, 2016 

 

 

 



BLANK



Space Ab,ve Tins Line For R~ording Data
Prepared by and return to:
Benjamin M. Gallop, Attorney
[lonithal, Riley, Ellis & Maland. LLP
Post Office Box 310
Nags Head, North Carolina 27959

Excise Tax: 5-0- Tax Parcel: 022110000 and 022519012
Transfer Tax: $-0-

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

NORTH CAROLINA, DARE COUNTY

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT, made this ‘14 day of February, 2009, by and
between FIRE SERVICE REAL ESTATE, NC., a North Carolina nonprofit corporation, whose address
is 15 South Dogwood Trail, Southern Shores, NC 27949 (hereinafter referred to as “FSRE”); and TOWN
OF SOUThERN SHORES, NORTH CAROLINA, a North Carolina municipal corporation, whose
address is 5375 N. Virginia Dare Trail. Southern Shores, NC 27949 (hereinafter referred to as “Town’):

WHEREAS, FSRE owns certain real property located in the Town of Southern Shores, Atlantic
Township, Dare County, North Carolina and being more particularly described as follows:

SEE ATrACHED EXHIBIT A.

(the “Real Estate”); and -

WHEREAS, FSRE and the Town have entered into an agreement dated February I , 2009
(the “FSR.E Agreement”), and FSRE and the Town desire to provide constructive notice of the existence
of the FSRE Agreement concenung the Real Estate.

NOW, THEREFORE, this Memorandum shall serve as record notice that the following
agreements apply to the Real Estate:

1. Right of First Reftisal. Upon termination of any lease existing at any time between FSRE
and the Southern Shores Volunteer Fire Department, Inc. (the “Fire Department”), the Town shall have
the right of first refusal to enter into a new lease of the all or any portion of the Real Estate with the FSRE
as against all other parties except the Fire Department. Upon the termination or expiration of any lease
existing at any time between FSRE and the Fire Department, and upon receipt of a bonn tide offer from a



third party, which offer is acceplable to FSRE for the leasing of all or any portion of the Real Estate
described above to anyone other than the Fire Department. FSRE shall give written notice to Town, by
certified mail, return receipt requested, of the existence and terms and conditions of such offer, furnishing
Town with a correct copy of such offer, and Town shall thirty (30) days thereafter to noti& FSRE by
certified mail, return receipt requested, that Town agrees to lease the Real Estate on the same terms and
conditions as are contained in such offer. If Town declines to make such offer, or fails to reply to FSREs
written notice of such offer, within such thirty (30) day period, FSRE may accept such offer from the
third party. Any written notice by FSRE to Town of the right of first refusal shall not relieve FSRE’s
obligation under this Agreement to give further notices of right of first refusal upon any future offers by
third parties for the Real Estate described in this Agreement.

The right of first refusal shall exist and continue until the termination or expiration of the FSRE
Agreement.

2. Transfer or other disposition of the Real Estate. The FSRE Agreement sets forth
provisions with regard to any subsequent transfer or other disposition of the Real Estate by FSRE, which
provisions are incorporated herein by reference in this Memorandum.

3. Other nrovisions. The other provisions set forth iii the FSRE Agreement are hereby
incorporated by reference in this Memorandum.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has caused this Agreement to be duly executed mid
delivered as of the day and year first above written.

FSRE:

lEe Chairman of the Board “~

ATTEST:

Secretary

BY:

ATTEST:
/7 ~
(~ ~l n 4O’~~

Caffieln;Towñtlerfl.

~orporate seal)

<V. *1.

A

TOWN OF SHORES,



NORTH CAROLINA, DARE cOuNTY

i, P1 etez’,Th~ n~fmi’b9c a Notary Public of the County of 12,9IC6
and State aforesaid, certif~’ that Ps-tOED ,~j/ 4—iJ..5 personally came before me this day and
acknowledged that (s)he is Secretary of FIRE SERVICE REAL ESTATE, INC., a North Carolina
nonprofit corporation, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the Corporation, the foregoing
instrument was signed in its name by its Vice Chairman of the Board, and attested by (him) (her) as its
Secretary.

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this ~ day of _________________ 2O~f

3 Notary Public -

Notat~s printed or typed name: J17t~_6P~.~TF ~_fi*u?ft’

c/fl

STATE OF NORTH CAROUNA. COUNTY OF DARE

i. ~onn;t ,4_4. , a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid,
certify that Charles B. Read. Jr. personally came before inc this day and acknowledged that he is the
Town Manager of The Town of Southern Shores, a North Carolina municipal corporation, and that by
authority duly given and as the act of the Town, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its
Town Manager, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by Carrie Gordin, its Town Clerk.

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this~of ~5n4 2O~.

It-i. ~tC~~)
Notary Public
Notary’s printed ortyped nanie:IS&nni’C. M.

My commissitn’~xpires I I i— n)
~. ‘c..

(AFFDE$~TARY SEAL?:

FSRE rnernn crprcvnpiii’.e rigbi (002) (Ei~wI) 2009.02.23.wpd
022409.13!0’. -



EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE REAL ESTATE

Parcel One
All that certain lot or parcel of land lying and being In the Town of Southern Shores, Atlantic Township, Dare County, North
Carolina. and more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point marked by a concrete marker set In the Northern right-of-way line of 3t Street saul point being located
North 7493’40” East 163.75 feet from the point of intersection of the Northern right.of-way line of 3t Street with the Eastern
right-of-way line of Duck Road, and being located at the Southwestern corner on said right-of-way lint 0~36th Street of property
now or formerly belonging to Larry K. Lambroff and wife; thence from the point of beginning, South 74’l3’40” West 100 feet
along the Northern right-or-way line of 3t Street to a concrete marker, thence North 15’46’20” West 150 feet to a concrete
marker~ thence North 7413’40” East ISO feet to a point marked by a concrete rnarkerat the Northwestern corner of property now
or formerly owned by Larry K. LambrolT and wife; thence along the line of property now or formerly owned by Latry K.
t.ambroffat,d wile; South lS’46’ZO” East 151) feet to the point of beginning, said property containing all of Urn 23 and a portion of
Lots 22 and 24 in Block 33.3 shown on that pint certain pInt entitled Amended Fiat B, Section 3, of Southern Shores, recorded in
Map Book I, Page 36, Dare County Registry.

Gas, oil and mineral rights are not hereby conveyed.

Being the same property conveyed to the Grantor herein by deed dated May 25, 1977 and recorded in Book 247. Page 411, Dare
County Registry.

Parcel Two:
All that certain lot or parcel of land iylng slid being In the Town of Southern Shores, Atlantic Township, Dare County, North
Carolina, and more particularly described as foliows

BEGINNING at a point located In the Eastern margin or rigltI of way of NCSR 1200, commonly referred to as The Duck Road,
having a 60 foot right of way at (his point where such Easter,, right of way Is intersected by the Northern margin or right of way of
Dogwood Trail as It extends in an Easterly direction from the Duck Road towards the Atlantic Ocean, and said Dogwood Trailalso
having a 60 foot right of way at this point, and said point of beginning further iocated a course of North 34’44’44” East a distance
of 48.92 feet from a concrete monument designated NCGS “Firehouse”, which monument is located within the right of way of
Dogwood Trail near the Southern margin thereof; running thence from the point of beginning a course of North 36’08’09” West a
distance of 152.98 feet along the Eastern right of way of NCSR 1200 to a concrete monument; thence turning and running North
65’02’04” East a distance of 93,17 feet to a point thence turning and running South 24’Sl’so” East • distance of 150.0 feet to a
point in the Northern margin of Dogwood Trail; thence turning and running South 65’02’04” West a distance of 63,55 feet along’
the Northern margin of Dogwood Trail to the point or place of beginning.

Same being the remainder of Lot 25, Block 33 of the Subdivision of Southern Shores as shown on Map Book 2 at Page 142 of the
Dare County Public Registry and constituting an additional portion of property located adjacent to and West of the Sonthera
Shores Volunteer Fire Department property presently existing.

Gas, oR and mineral rights are not hereby conveyed.

This conveyanee is made subject to existing rights of way easements including but not limited to the existence of a certain VEPCO
transformer and other utility equipment located on and adjoining this property and crossing this property at various points.

Being the same property conveyed to Grantor herein by deed dated October 22, 1982 and recorded in Book 334, Page 656, Dare
County Registry.

4



EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE REAL ESTATE (cont.)

Parcel Three:
Alt that certain lot or parcel of land located and being on the West side of Dogwood Trail in the Town orsoutbenn Shores, Atlantic
Township, Dare County, North Carolina, and bounded as follows:

BEGINNING at a concrete monument located in the West margin of the right of way of Dogwood Trail, the said monument also
being located 654.53 feet North of(he point of intersectIon of the West margin of the right of way of Dogwood Trail with the North
margin of the right of way of U.S. Highway 158, said beginning point being also located at the intersection of the North boundary
of the Bishop Vincent S. Waters parcel of land with the West margin of the right of way of Dogwood Trail; (hence from 11w
beginning point South SO dig. 53 mm. 00 sen. West 200 feet to an Iron pipe or other marker, thence cornering North 10 deg. 07
mm. 005cc. West 150 feet to an iron pipe or other marker located and being in the South boundary of the lands of Kitty Hawk
Land Company; thence cornering North SO dig. 53 mlii. 00 sec. East 200 feet to the West morgin of the right of way of Dogwood
Trail; thence cornering and along theWest margin of the Tight of way of Dogwood Trail South 10 dig. 07 mm. OOsec. Last ISO feet
to the point of beginning.

The same being the Eastern most Zoo feet of those certain lands as shown on a map or pInt entitled “Survey for Kitty Hawk Land
Company of property to he given to Town of Southern Shores, NC,” by Southern Surveying and Land Planning, dated January 14,
1986 and recorded In nat Cabinet C, Slide lB. Dare County Registry.

There Is reserved and retained from the lands hereinabove conveyed, an easement for access, egress and ingress to and from other
lands of the.Town of Southern Shores lying to the Westward of the lands herein conveyed and a street being constructed by Kitty
Hawk Land Company on the North of the lands herein above conveyed. ova’, upon and across the Northwestern corner of the
properties above described said easement being 25 feet in width and 84 feet in length and being bounded as follows:

BEGINNING at a point which said point Is the Northwestern corner of the lands herein above conveyed said beginning point being
located on a course of South 80 deg. 53 mm. 00 sec. West 200 feet from the intersection of the South boundary of the lands of Kitty
Hawk Land Company with the West margin of the right of way of Dogwood Trail and thence running from the beginning point
North 80 dig. 53 miii. 00 sec. East 84 feet to a point~ thence cornering South 10 dig. 07 miii. 00 sec. East 25 feet to a point thence
cornering South 80 dig. 53 mlii, 00 sec. West 84 feet to a point being in and marking the Eastern boundary of the remaining land,
of the Town ofSouthern Shores; thence cornering and along the Town ofSouthern Shores East boundary North tO dig. 07 mm. 00
see. West 25 feet to the point of beginning.

The property hereinabove described was acquired by Grantors by instrument recorded in Deed Book 355 page 166 and Deed Book
587, Page 363, Dare County Registry.

Parcels One, Two and Thrcc hercinabovc described being the same property acquired on the 29th Day of Januan’, 2009
by Fire Service Real Estate, Inc. via the Deed of Gift recorded on January 3t, 2009 at Book 1790 and Page 153 of the
Dare County Public Registry.

5



NORTH CAROLINA
flare County

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF SOUTHERN
SHORES, AND FIRE SERVICE REAL ESTATE, INC.

THIS CONTRACT AND AGREEMENT (this “Contract”) made and entered
into this First Day of February 2009, by and between Town of Southern Shores, (the
“Town”), and Fire Service Real Estate, Inc. (“FSRE”).

RECITALS:

A. The Town and the Southern Shores Volunteer Fire Department, Inc. (the “Fire
Department”) have agreed to enter into a contract for fire services (the “Fire Contract”), a
copy of said contract being attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’;

B. As a condition precedent to the entry into the Fire Contract by the Town, the
FSRE must agree to provide its assets, namely the real estate (the “Real Estate”) described
in the Deed of Gift found at Book 1790, Page 153 of the Dare County Public Registry and
attached hereto as Exhibit ‘B’ and incorporated herein by reference, as part of the
distribution of the assets of the SSVFD in the event of termination as set forth in Section
14 of the Fire Contract;

C. Such action is consistent with the Articles of Incorporation of FSRE and the
stated purposes of the FSRE to specifically emphasize “the need to support firefighting
services within Dare County, North Carolina.”

D. The Fire Department is the only current lessee/customer of the FSRE and the
existence of a contract between the Fire Department and the Town is a benefit to the FSRE
in that the Fire Department will continue to lease the Real Estate from the FSRE;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the Fire Department and the Town
entering into the Fire Contract and the mutual promises and agreements herein contained
the parties hereto mutually contract and agree as follows:

(I) Upon an event of termination triggering the distribution of assets of the Fire
Department pursuant to Section 14 of the Fire Contract, FSRE shall comply with and
distribute all assets of FSRE as agreed to by the Fire Department and its customers,
including the Town, or as directed by the third party neutral administrator if one is hired
pursuant to Section 14 of the Fire Contract.

(2) FSRE agrees to maintain reasonable liability insurance coverage, as protection
from judgments of any kind, including but not limited to insurance coverage for claims of
premises liability and general liability insurance. FSRE agrees to include the Fire
Department and the Town as insured on any policies of insurance maintained pursuant to
this Contract. In the event the Fire Department maintains sufficient insurance coverage to
satis& this provision, the FSRE need not purchase additional insurance unless it feels such
purchase is reasonably necessary.

(3) Upon the dissolution, insolvency or bankruptcy of FSRE, FSRE agrees to
transfer and convey the Real Estate and any other assets of FSRE in a manner consistent
with the Fire Contract to the Fire Department or as agreed to by both the Fire Department
and the Town.

(4) During the term of this Contract, FSRE shall not take any action to dispose of
or otherwise reduce the value or encumber any assets, including the Real Estate, that may
be allocated to the Town or any other customer of the Fire Department pursuant to the Fire

Page I of2



Contract with the intent or purpose of avoiding or reducing the Town’s interest in such
assets. FSRE shall provide both the Fire Department and the Town with at least (20) days
written notice of their intentions prior to encumbering, pledging or otherwise disposing of
any portion of the Real Estate in any manner other than a lease to the Fire Department or
the Town for the purposes of providing fire services. Said notice shall include any
information pertinent to the action the FSRE intends to take, including but not limited to
the parties, the consideration and the description of any parcel subject to the action
intended by the FSRE. The FSRE shall provide any parties involved with the intended
action full disclosure of this Contract, including its exhibits.

(5) The FSRE shall enter into a lease of the Real Estate with the Fire Department.
Upon termination of any lease existing at any time between FSRE and the Fire
Department, the Town shall have the right of first refusal to enter into a new lease of the
Real Estate with the FSRE as against all other parties except the Fire Department.

(6) The Fire Department shall have the right to enforce any provisions in this
Contract against FSRE.

(7) This Contract shall remain in effect as long as any contract exists between the
Town and the Fire Department.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF: Fire Service Real Estate, Inc., has caused this
instrument to be executed in its name and behalf by its Vice Chairman of the Board,
attested by its Secretary as the act and deed of said Corporation, and the Town of Southern
Shores, a municipal corporation of the State of North Carolina has caused this instrument
to be executed in its name and behalf by its Town Manager, attested by its Town Clerk,
and its corporate seal affixed hereto as the act and deed of the said Municipality.

ATTEST:

FIRE S ~CE REA STATE, INC.

BY:
VIce Chairman of the Board

Secretary

ATTEST:
Town Manager

This instrdment has been pre-audited in the
manner required by the Local Government
Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

&4LLk~ ~.

Town Finance Officer

TOWN OF

BY~

c
(-4~f~4AJ

Town Clerk~w~I’ ii~
(tèrpöihte ~seal)

Page2of2



NORTH CAROUNA
Dare County

EXH

r:
FIRE SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF

SOUTHERN SHORES, AND THE SOUTHERN SHORES
VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT, INC.

THIS CONTRACT AND AGREEMENT (this “Contract”) made and entered into
this First Day of February 2009, by and between Town of Southern Shores, (the “Town”),
and the Southern Shores Volunteer Fire Department, Inc., (the “Fire Department’).

WI TN E S S E T H:

THAT WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 160A Article 3, Sections 16-19 provides that a Town
may enter into continuing contracts and pursuant to this authority, the Town may enter into
a continuing contract with a volunteer fire department and may make annual appropriations
of such funds as may be provided for in this Contract; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements
herein contained and pursuant to the general power and authority of the Fire Department to
furnish fire fighting services and the general power and authority of the Town Council to
provide fire protection for its inhabitants and owners of property within Southern Shores,
the parties hereto mutually contract and agree as follows:

(I) CONTRACT TERM — The effective term of this Contract shall, upon the
execution of this Contract by all parties begin on February 1, 2009 and shall extend for ten
(10) years from the first day of July 2009. A Contract Year shall be considered to be a
fiscal year running from July 1st of one calendar year through June 30th of the following
calendar year.

(2) SERVICES PROVIDED — The Fire Department agrees to furnish and provide
continuing fire protection service to all properties lying within the incorporated limits of
Southern Shores, N.C., by promptly dispatching, upon call from the Dare County Central
Paging System or upon notification of fire or emergency by any other means, the Fire
Department’s fire fighting and rescue equipment and adequate personnel to operate the
same, and then making diligent efforts to control and extinguish all fires and control or
mitigate emergencies.

(3) MANNER OF PROVIDING SERVICES - The Fire Department, in providing
the said services in a manner that is consistent with the Town’s Emergency Management
Plan, shall use its own means and methods, which shall not be subject to control, direction
or supervision by the Town. All fire fighting equipment and personnel necessary and
proper for the performance of this Contract shall be provided by the Fire Department at its
sole cost and expense, and all persons engaged in fighting fires pursuant to the provisions
of the Contract shall be subject to the exclusive control, direction and supervision of the
Fire Department. The Town shall not have any right or power with respect to the
employment, control, direction, supervision, suspension or discharge of any person who
may engage in fire fighting services or activities in the performance of the obligations
imposed by this Contract upon the Fire Department in furnishing fire fighting services to
the Town for the benefit of its residents and property owners.

(4) PROHIBITING INTERFERENCE WITH FIRE DEPARTMENT - The Town
will adopt such rules and regulations, by ordinances or otherwise, as may be necessary and
proper to prohibit interference with personnel of the Fire Department in the discharge of
their duties in fighting fires within.the Town, to prohibit damage to and interference with

Page 1 of 7



the fire fighting equipment and apparatus of the Fire Department and to provide for such
other rules and regulations as necessary for the furtherance of the objectives of this
Contract.

(5) LONG TERM DEBT — The Fire Department shall not be restricted in its ability
to encumber assets or commit to debt so long as its Debt Ratio remains less than 1.0. The
Debt Ratio is calculated by using the following formula:

Debt Ratio = Total DebtlTotal Assets
If the Fire Department wishes to commit to new debt that would cause its Debt Ratio to
exceed 1.0, then the Fire Department must first receive the prior approval of the Town
Council before doing so. If the Town does not provide approval, the Fire Department will
not commit to or issue new debt until and unless doing so will not increase its Debt Ratio
above 1.0, or it receives subsequent permission from the Town Council. The Town through
its manager or the Town Council upon reasonable notice may request that the Fire
Department provide the Town with its current Debt Ratio and the Fire Department shall
respond to such a request within a reasonable time, not to exceed fourteen (14) business
days.

(6) PRESENTATION OF BUDGET ANt) YEARLY AUDIT - The Fire
Department will present the Town with a budget annually and a fiscal year end audit.

(a) The budget will be in a form and level of detail that is mutually agreed upon and
include, at a minimum, revenue and expenses for operations, capital and debt service. The
budget shall be submitted using the same time schedule required of Town departments.
The budget shall provide sufficient information for the Town to calculate the Debt Ratio
referenced in this Contract. The Fire Department shall provide a person familiar with the
budget to appear before the Town Council at the Town Council’s request to discuss the
budget in open session of a public meeting of the Town Council.

(b) The fiscal year end fmancial audit shall be conducted by a reputable CPA firm.
Said audit shall result in the production of a written audit report. The audit report shall
provide sufficient information for the Town to calculate the Debt Ratio referenced in this
Contract. The Fire Department will use its best efforts to assure that a copy of the written
audit report shall be presented to the Town no later than November ~ of each Contract
Year.

(7) DEVELOPMENT OF STRATEGIC PLAN - Town and Fire Department
explicitly acknowledge that the Fire Department is facing significant capital projects
during the term of this Contract, including those itemized in Attachment I to this
instrument, entitled Southern Shores Volunteer Fire Department, Strategic Plan. The Fire
Department shall provide for participation by the Town in the development and
finalization of the priorities and the sources and availability of funding for those needs.

(8) COMPENSATION TO FIRE DEPARTMENT- Except as otherwise provided
in this Section, the Fire Department’s compensation under this Contract shall be calculated
annually as of the first day of July by using an effective tax rate, expressed in cents per
hundred dollars (hereinafter “effective tax rate”) multiplied by the taxable value of
property within the Town after adjustment for a 99.5% collection rate (hereinafter
“Property Tax Base”) per year.

(a) For the period beginning February 1,2009 and ending June 30, 2009, the Town
shall pay $25,000 per month in five monthly payments. Payments shall be due on or
before the fifteenth day of each month.

(b) For the Contract Year beginning July 1, 2009 and ending June 30, 2010, the
compensation of the Fire Department shall be $300,000. For said fiscal year, the Town shall make

Page2 of7



two equal payments to the Fire Department in July and January each totaling $150,000.
Payments shall be due on or before the fifteenth day of both months.

(c) For the Contract Year beginning July 1, 2010 and ending June 30, 2011, the
effective tax rate shall be two cents ($0.02) per hundrçd and the Town shall, make two
equal payments to the Fire Department in July and January each totaling one half of the
annual amount. Payments shall be due on or before the fifteenth day of both months.

(d) Annually, following the submission of the Fire Department budget request, the
Town Council shall determine if the then current effective tax rate is sufficient to fund the
needs of the Fire Department. The Fire Department may request adjustments in the
effective tax rate annually during the budget process. The burden of proof in establishing
the need for any increases shall be upon the Fire Department. The Town Council may
accept, modi~, or decline any request for adjustment of the effective tax rate, no later than
April l~ of each year, provided that the Fire Department may request and Town agrees to
grant a public hearing regarding any such request.

(e) If during the term of this contract and any extensions thereto, a reassessment is
conducted which causes an adjustment up or down in the taxable property within the
Town, the effective tax rate shall be adjusted to compensate for the change in values so
that the resulting effective tax rate is revenue neutral to the Fire Department.

(t) Once the Town Council has established a new effective tax rate, such rate shall
become the basis for continuing annual funding of the Fire Department until modified
through the budget process contained in this Contract.

(g) The Fire Department reasonably relies on the predictable continuation of
funding under this Contract to service long-term commitments that serve the mutual
interests of the Tow-n, other customers and the Fire Department. At no time during the term
of this Contract will the effective tax rate be decreased from the amount specified in the
previous year, without specific written agreement of the Board of Directors of the Fire
Department.

(h) From time to time the Fire Department may encounter unusual fmancial needs
beyond its reasonable control. These may include, but are not limited to, new regulatory
requirements, industry-wide cost increases for items such as fuel and insurance. When the
Fire Department becomes aware of such needs beyond its reasonable control, it may report
those needs to the Town, together with options and a plan to meet those needs. The Town,
at its sole discretion may choose, but shall not be required to adjust the effective tax rate
for the remainder of the fiscal year or make a grant to the Fire Department for any portion
of such needs that are associated with providing services under this Contract.

(i) The Fire Department may seek other sources of revenue including, but not
limited to, gifts, donations, grants, additional customers and fees for service.

(i) Fees may be assessed of any person, corporation or entity for
extraordinary expenses incurred when mitigating an emergency situation. Examples
include the rental or purchase of specialized equipment (i.e.: cranes, heavy
equipment, boats for rescues, lumber and tools for shoring of structures, etc.), and
for the use of items and supplies that are likely reimbursable by insurers, (i.e.: foam
concentrate, FIT-5, etc.).

(ii) The Fire Department may also charge fees of Town taxpayers, provided
that a fee schedule is first presented to the Town and approved by the Council
during the budget process or some other mutually agreeable time. Fees of this type
may be established for multiple nuisance fire alarms, property inspections and
similar occurrences and will be reviewed at least annually during the budget
process.

Page3 of7



(iii) The Fire Department may also establish a fee schedule for certain types
of responses and services, (i.e.: traffic accident, extrication, etc.) provided that
persons and corporations who pay property taxes to the Town shall be exempted
from such service charges.

(9) EXPANDED SCOPE/ADDITIONAL WORK- The Town and Fire
Department agree that at any time during the term of this Contract either party may initiate
discussions regarding the expansion of the scope of the Contract to include expanded or
additional services to be provided to the Town by the Fire Department. If such expansion
of scope is agreed to and implemented, the financial terms and other terms of this Contract
shall be changed to reflect the cost of providing new services.

(10) ESTABLISHMENT OF FIRE DISTRICT- During the first twelve months of
this Contract Town and Fire Department will diligently analyze and use best efforts to
determine if inclusion of the Town in the Fire District, which currently serves Martin’s
Point is a substantial benefit to the Town. If such a determination is made at any time
during this Contract the parties may undertake such inclusion by mutual agreement to
petition the County to expand the Fire Protection District to include the Town.

(11) AVAILABILITY OF RECORDS- The Town or any resident thereof may
inspect the financial records of the Fire Department by appointment with the Treasurer or
leadership of the Fire Department with reasonable notice and during business hours.

(12) INSURANCE OBLIGATIONS Fire Department agrees to maintain insurance
coverage, the premiums for which shall be included in the budget of the Fire Department,
said coverage to be as follows:

(a) The insurance coverage to be maintained by the Fire Department shall be as follows:
(i) Workers’ Compensation: Coverage to apply to all volunteers for statutory
limits in compliance with the applicable State and Federal laws. The policy must
include employer’s liability with a limit of$l00,000.00 each accident; $100,000
bodily injury or disease for each employee and $500,000.00 bodily injury or
disease policy limit.
(ii) Comprehensive General Liability: Shall have minimum limits of$1,000,000
per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury liability and property
damage liability. This shall include premises and/or operations, products and/or
completed operations, broad form property damage, and a contractual liability
endorsement.
(iii) Business Auto Policy: Shall have minimum limits of$l,000,000.00 per
occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury liability and property damage
liability. This shall include: owned vehicles, hired and non-owned vehicles, and
employee non-ownership.
(iv) Professional Errors and Omissions Liability: Coverage shall have minimum
limits of $1,000,000.00 per claim and $2,000,000.00 aggregate.
(v) Umbrella Liability: Coverage shall have a minimum limit of $1,000,000.00
with underlying coverages of compensation/employers liability.

(b) Additional special requirements shall be as follows:
(i) The Fire Department shall include the Town as an additional insured on each of
the liability polices required to be maintained by this Contract.

(ii) The Fire Department shall maintain current, valid insurance policies meeting
the requirements stated above during the entire duration of this Contract. The Fire
Department shall insure that for any policy of insurance held by the Fire

Page 4 of 7



Department pursuant to this Contract that the Town receives any certificates for
new insurance policies within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the policy and
that the Town receives renewal certificates more than thirty (30) days prior to any
expiration date on every policy. The Fire Department shall insure that the Town is
provided thirty (30) days notice of any event of a cancellation or modification of
any policy of insurance held by the Fire Department pursuant to this Contract. The
Fire Department shall insure that certificates of insurance meeting the required
insurance provisions shall be forwarded to the Town. The Fire Department shall
insure that the insurance certificates contain no language stating or implying that no
liability shall be imposed upon the insurance company for failure to provide the
Fire Department and the Town with the notice required by this Contract.

(13) EVENTS OF TERMINATION This Contract shall terminate upon any of
the following events:

(a) The dissolution, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Fire Department;

(b) The dissolution, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Town;

(c) Inclusion of the Town in a Fire Protection District in which fire protection
services for the Town and its citizens will be provided by Dare County through any
means allowed by law for Dare County to provide such services;

(d) The expiration of one hundred eighty (180) days after the Fire Department’s
receipt of written notice that the Town has adopted a resolution establishing a
municipal fire department;

(c) The expiration of one hundred eighty (180) days after the Fire Department’s
receipt of written notice that Town intends to use another entity to provide its fire
services;

(f) The parties entry into a new written agreement which expressly supersedes this
Contract; or

(g) The expiration of this Contract without the parties’ written agreement to renew
the terms of this Contract.

(14) EFFECTS OF TERMINATION— Upon the termination of this Contract all
obligations of the parties to this Contract shall cease except for those obligations created
by this Section:

(a) DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS/LIABILITIES - Upon termination of this
Contract for any event of termination the assets and liabilities of the Fire
Department shall be disposed of as follows:
Distribution based on Section (13) - The Fire Department shall convene and
facilitate a meeting of its contracted customers including the Town, Dare County,

Page 5 of 7



acting on behalf of the citizens of Martin’s Point and any other municipalities or
entities with which the Fire Department contracts to provide Fire and Rescue
services. At that meeting, and any subsequent meetings, the parties will develop a
fair division of assets of the Fire Department and a plan to assure continued Fire
and Rescue services within each jurisdiction. If requested by the customers the Fire
Department will provide, at the Fire Department’s expense, a neutral third party
administrator, acceptable to all customers, with expertise in implementation and
provision of Fire and Rescue services, to assist in the development of the plan,
evaluation and distribution of assets and establishment of any contracts or
agreements required. The Fire Department shall cooperate hilly with the
distribution of assets and implementation of the pian developed during this process.
Town and Fire Department expressly agree that one goal of the process for
dissolution of the Fire Department outlined herein is to assure that all assets and
liabilities are fairly distributed and discharged so as to satisf~’ any and all
encumbrances and financial responsibilities of the Fire Department at the time of
dissolution.
Town specifically agrees that the funds invested on behalf of the Fire Department’s
members in the Length of Service Annuity Plan (LOSAP) will not be subject to
distribution among the customers of the Fire Department, but will be distributed to
the Fire Department members or in a manner that the members direct.
Fire Department agrees that should it contract with additional new customers, it
will not agree to terms in new contracts that contain provisions regarding the
distribution of assets that are used to serve the Town that give the new customers
rights that are more than equal to those of the Town. New customers may
participate in the process described herein with the same rights as the Town.
Assets directly contributed or funded by new customers and assets not used in or
related to service to the Town may be exempted from this provision by terms of
new customer contracts. For example, if a new customer in a new geographic area
contributes a station and fife apparatus to the Fire Department for use in its own
jurisdiction, that customer may be given preferential rights regarding that specific
station and equipment, including reversion rights.
(b) ASSET OBLIGATIONS- The Town warrants that it will fulfill all obligations

and requirements and meet all terms and conditions required by the Federal
Emergency Management Agency, the Federal or State government in regard to any
vehicles, equipment or property that has been acquired using grant funding, if such
assets are actually conveyed to the Town.
(b) INDEMNIFICATION- The Town agrees that it will, to the extent authorized by
law, assume all responsibility for all assets and obligations actually conveyed to the
Town. Town further warrants that to the maximum extent authorized by law, it will
protect, hold harmless, indemniJ~’ and defend the Fire Department, its Board of
Directors, Officers and members from all liabilities, without limit, related to the
condition of or use by the Town of any assets, or responsibility for obligations
conveyed to the Town.
(c) REMAINING ASSETS- If the Fire Department is dissolved, any assets not
conveyed to its customers under the terms of this Contract will be disposed of as
required by State Law. If the Town establishes a Town Fire Department it shall not
have any rights to assets of the Fire Department except as provided in this Contract.
(d) PROTECTION OF ASSETS — During any period following notice of
impending termination of this Contract for which obligations of the Fire
Department continue, the Fire Department shall not take any action to dispose of or

Page 6 of 7



otherwise reduce the value or encumber any assets that may be conveyed to the
Town pursuant to this agreement with the intent or purpose of. avoiding or
reducing the Town’s interest in such asset.

(15) RIGHTS TO ASSETS AND FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY-Other than as
specifically set forth in this Contract, the Town has no claim or other rights related to the
property and assets of the Southern Shores Volunteer Fire Department, Inc. Except as
specifically set forth in this Contract, the Town will have no fmancial responsibility for or
control over the debts, encumbrances or liabilities of the Fire Department. If in the future
the Town specifically agrees to co-sign or guarantee some future loan, lease, bond or
fmancial instrument, the Town shall have the right to make conditions and exercise control
over such obligations, which it guarantees.
(16) RELATION TO PRIOR CONTRACTS — This Contract replaces and supersedes all
previous contracts entered into between the parties for the provision of fire services to the
Town by the Fire Department.
(17) NEGOTIATION OF FUTURE CONTRACTS — If the parties have not negotiated a
new agreement or renewal of this Contract then the parties shall enter into good faith
negotiations for the same at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the end of the
contract term. The Fire Department shall initiate said negotiations.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF: The Southern Shores Volunteer Fire Department,
Inc., has caused this instrument to be executed in its name and behalf by its Chairman of
the Board, attested by its Secretary and its corporate seal affixed hereto all as the act and
deed of said Corporation, and the Town of Southern Shores, a municipal corporation of the
State of North Carolina has caused this instrument to be executed in its name and behalf by
its Town Manager, attested by its Town Clerk, and its corporate seal affixed hereto as the
act and deed of the said Municipality.

FIRE DEPARTMENT, INC.

Chairri~ .ft15~ä tBO~1’d,,
ATTEST: Sc~~

,~t.n,dw~Jc~i SE:~L<~
S’ecretary .L2

(corporate seal)

~~TI i”

TOWN OF 0 THERN SHORES

BY: %~L5S/f
Town Manager

ATTEST: // This instrument has been pre-audited in the
manner required by the Local Government

~1~ Budget and Fiscal Control Act.
Town C~çrk~ ~ -~n~ijji ~t4 ~

-. .. ~corporate seaf) z~. Town Finance Officer

S

0
Page7of7



EXt-fl B: 2790 P: 153 Doe Id: 6252827
OIraI,20*0 a3~l7 P11 fi.c.ipt a eq-cool
Dot Coda tCEI NCSSCA.. Tsp Pd sa to
Oars.,. Pt tray, R.,ist.r or Paidn Oars CO. NC

E252fl7 6: Sf0 P: 153 Pag. 5 of 3 5’JB.’BO 3D? P11

Ill] W~F wc~,j~1~~ ii ~

E(EMPT
DARE COUNIYT~<

cou.EcroR
ND. —

Tax L.ol No. - Parcel ID No. ________________________

Veined By ______________ County on the day of ___________________ _200_

Mail oDor recording In: Grantee
This instnjmenl was prepared by: Dwight H. Wheleas File 02-034
Briefdeseription: Metes and Bounds, Sojathen, Shores, Dare County, North Carolina

NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL WARRANTY DEED
PeeJ o& ~

THIS DEED made this 29a day ofianuary, 2009, by and beiween

GRANTOR GRANTEE

SOUThERN ShORES VOLUNTEER FIRE FIRE SERVICE REAL ESTATE, INC.. a North Carolina
DEPARTMENT. INC.,a North Carolina Non-Profit Non-Profit Corporation
Corporalion

~ 5 South Dogwood Trail
Southern Shores. NC 27949

The designaTion Granrors and Grontees as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs, successors, and assigns. and shall include
singular, plural, masculine, frninine or neuter as required by context,

WITNESSE’flt that the Grantor, for valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, thc receipt of witich is hereby acknowledged, has
and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell and convey unto she Grantee in fee simple, all that Certain lot or parcel of land silualed
in Town of Southern Shores. Dare County, Nonh Carolina and more panicularly described as follows:

Parcel One:
All that certain lot or parcel of land lying and being in the Town of Southern Shores, Atlantir Township, Dare County, ~orth
Carolina, and more particutarlv described as follows:

BEGINNING ala point marked by a eonerete markerset In the Norihena right-of-way line of36°’ Stint, said point bring located
North 74’13’40” East 163.75 feel from the point of interseclion of the Norehtrn right-of-way line of 360 Street wIth the Eastern
right-of-way line of Duck Road, and being located at the Southwestern corner on said right-of-way line of 3t Street of propert>
now or formerly belonging to Larry K. Lambroet and wife; thence front the point of begitining, South ‘74’13’4r West IOU feet
along She Northern right-of-way line of 36’ Street to a concrete marker, slience North a54620” Went 150 feel to a concrete
markrr~ thence North 74’!3’40 Eaal tso reel to a poInt mnrked by a concrete niarkrrat the Northwestern corner nfproprty now
or formerly owned by Larry K. Lambroff and wife; thence along the line of property now or fonnerly owned by Larry K.
t..ambrolTand wife; South 15’46’20” East 550 feet no the point ofbcginning,said property contsining alt of Lot 23 and a portion of

NORTH CAROLINA-DARE COUNTY
I CERTIFY THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT TO

BE A TRUE COPY AS COMPARED WITH THE

Ot~IGINAL ON Fm’ IN THIS OFFICE.

THIS,4Lth~AY OF . iLua.n5
BARBARA N. GRAY

BY REG~S!E~QFDEEDSOFq?~j’cOwg~
flEP~tTYIA~t~’.. REGISTER OF DEEDS - ,:~‘



6252827 8’ 57989: 553 Page 2 of 3 ./35/05 a’s? Pit

- •i ,4p~I wWtthcI~U~I.1b~r i~i Llth’~IH 11111

1.41522 and 24 in Block 33 as shown on that plat certain pbt entitled Amended P1st 8, Section 3, ofSouthern Shores, recorded in
Map Book I, Page 36, Dare Counly Registry.

Gas, oil and mineral rights are not hereby conveyed.

Being the same properly conveyed to Ihe Grantor Iserein by deed dated May 2~. 1977 and recorded in Book 247, Page 411. Dare
County Registry.

Parcel two:
All that certain tot or parcel of land lying and being in the ‘[own of Southern Shores. Atlantic Township, Dare County, North
Carolina, and more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a poist located in the Eastern margin or right of way of NCSR 1200, commonly refen’ed to as the Duck Road,
having a 60 foot right otway at this point where such Eastern right of way is intersected by lhe Northern margin or right 0f way of
Dogwood Trail as It extends in an Easterly direction from the Duck Road towards the Atlantic Ocean, and aaid Dogwood Trail also
having aGO foot right of way al this point, and said point of beginning further located a course of North 34’44’44” East a distance
of 48.92 feet from a concrete monument desIgnated NCGS “Firehouse”, which monument is located within the right of way of
Dogwood Trail near Ott Southern margin thereof; running tlsence from the point ot’beginning a course ofNorth 36’0S’09” West a
distance of t52.98 feet along cIte Eastern right ofwuy oCNCSR 1200 to a concrete monument; thence turning and running North
65’02’04” East a distance of 93.17 feet to a point; thence turning and running South 24’57’56” East a distatcc of 150.0 feet to a
point in the Northern macgin of Dogwood Trail; thence turntttg and running South 65’02’03” West a distance of 63.55 feet along
the Northern margin of Dogwood Trail to the point or place ofbeginning.

Same heing the remainder of Lot 25, Block 33 of the Subdivision of Southertt Shorn as shown on Map Book 2 at Page 142 of the
Dare County Public Registry and constituting an additional portion of property located adjacent to and West of the Southern
Shores Volunteer Fire Department property presently culling.

Gas, oil and mineral rights are no! hereby conveyed.

This conveyance is made subject to existing rights of way casements bielitding but not limited to the existence of a certain VEPCO
transformer and other ntillty equipment located on and adjoining this property and crossing this property at various points.

tleing the same property conveyed to Grantor herein by deed dated October 22, 1982 and recorded in Book 334, Page 656, Dare
County Registry.

Parcel Tame:
Alt that certain lot or parcel of land located and being on the West side of Dogwood Trail in tltc ‘[own ofSouthern Shores. Atlantic
Township. Dare County, North Carolina, and hounded as fullaws:

BEGINNING at a concrete monument located in the West margin ofthe right ofway of Dogwood Trait, the said inonumettt also
being located 654.53 feet North of the point of intersection of the West margin ofthe right ofway of Dogwood Trail with tht North
margin of the right of way of U.S. Highway 158. said beginning pnint being also located at the intersection of the North boundary
or the Bishop Vincent S. Waters parcel of land wills the West margin of the right of way of Dogwood Trail; thence from cite
beginning point South SO deg. 53 unin. 00 see. West 200 feet loan iron pipe or other marker; thence cornering North 10 deg. 07
mm. 00 see. West ISO feet to an Iron plpc or other marker located and being in the South boundary of the tattds of Kitty hawk
Land Company; thence cornering North 80 dog. 53 mis. 00 sec. East 200 feet to the West margin of the right of way of Dogwood
Trail; thence cornering and along the West margin oftlte right ofway ofDogwnod Trail Sooth 10 dog. 07 mi OOaec. Ease ISO feet
to the point ofbeginning.

The same being the Eastern ntost 200 feet of those certain lands as shown on a map or pItt entitted “Survey for Kitty flawk Land
Company of property to begiveo to Town of Southern Shores, NC,” by Southern Suncying and Land Planning.dated January 14,
t9t6 and recorded its P1st CabInet C, Slide SE, Dare County Registry.

There is reserved and retained from the lands hereinabovt conveyed, an casement for access, egress and ingress to and from other
lands of the Town ofSouihera Shores lying to the Westward of the lands herein etnveyed and a street being constructed by Kitty



62528Z? U: rise P: t53 Page 3 of 3 5130/09 3:57 PrI

iv r ~ iEP,w~:w4 11111

Hawk I_and Company on the North of the lands herein above conveyed, over, upon and across the Northwestern corner of the
properties shove described salts eaten’enl being 25 feel in width and 84 feel in length and bring bounded as follows,

BEGINNING at a point which said point is the Northwestern cornerofthe lands herein above conveyed said beginning point being
located on a count of Sooth 80 deg. 53 mm. 00 sec. West 200 feet from the inteneclion of the South boundary of the lands of Kitty
Hawk Land Company with the West margin of the right of way of Dogwood Trail and ehenec running from the beginning point
North 80 deg. 53 mIt. 00 see. East 84 eel to a point; thence cornering South lOdeg. 07 mm. Oosec. Ermt 25 Sect to a polnq thence
cornering South SO deg. 53 mm. 00 see. West 84 feet to a point bcing t~ and marking the Eastern boundary of the remaining lands
ofiheTown ofSouthern Shores; thence cornering and along theTowtt ofSouthern Shores East boundary North 10 deg. 07 nun. 00
see. West 25 feet no the point of beginning.

list property hereinabove described was acquired by Grarnors by instrument recorded in Deed Book 355 page l6~ and Deed Book
587. Page 363. Dare County Registry.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD lbs aforesaid lot or ptsrcct of land and all privileges and apptinenancet tlscrcto belonging Its the Grantee
its fcc simple.

The Grantor covenant with the Grantee, that Grantor is seized of the prentises in fcc simple, and has the right to convey the same in
fee simple, that the title is marketable and free and clear of all encumbrances, and that Grantor will warrant and defend the title against
the lawful claims of alt persons wtsomsoever except for the exceptions hereinafter stated.

title to the property hereinabove described is subject to the following exceptions:

Easements end restrictions appearittg of record.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Gruntors have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and year ‘rat abuse written.

~ 50~hor~~unetD~artmrnt. Inc. (SEAL.)
(;rorge walski, Cttsirman

STATE 0F15 Q~,t L~ Qcsa.za~
COUNTY OF~

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, certify that George Kowalski personally came before mc this day sad acknowledged to me that
he is Chairman of the Board of Directors of Southern Shores Vol.sntecr Ftre Depanntenn, Inc.. a Non-Profit Noralt Carolina
Corporation, and that he. as Chairman of he Board of Directors, being authorized to do no, executed the foregoing on behalf of the
corporation.

Witness toy hand and official seal, this theS C day ofianuasy, 2009.

ea~._~~ (SEAUSTAMP)
Notary Public
My Conmissiot Eapires: 4 I tea .~f) ib

etnuan t’~solie NanoCaroSna
lI~ ~ .:,rtsnt oaro

w Wooer,

L-.~a~k~-- :~i~r~Oe~



BLANK

















BLANK



.:t. SCt~fn~

Town of Southern Shores
a

2 ~. 5375 N. Virginia Dare Trail, Southern Shores, NC 27949
Phone 252-261-2394/ Fax 252-255-0876

iufo~southernshores-ne.gov

www.southcrnshores-nc.gov

Recessed Budget Meeting
May 12, 2010
9:50 a.m.-Pitts Center

The following Council Members were present: Mayor Hal Denny, Mayor pro tern Jodi Hess, Council
Members Kevin Stroud and Jim Pfizenmayer. Council Member George Kowaiski absent.

Also present were: Interim Town Manager Chief David Kole, Consultant Webb Fuller, Town Clerk
Carrie Gordin, Capital Improvement Plan Chairman Bill Gleason and Finance Officer Bonnie Swain.

Mayor Denny called the recessed budget meeting from May 10, 2010 to order at 9:50 a.m. He proposed
the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) be addressed first with input from Council and then review the
operating budget and discuss what level of services are needed for FY20 10-2011.

Mayor Denny proposes a two-tier tax rate for operating expenses and the CIP.

Bill Gleason stated the CIP will require a steady stream of revenue for the on-going projects including the
canal dredging project, road improvements to Chicahauk Trail, Poteskeet Trail, Poteskeet Loop, Gray
Squirrel Lane and Old Passage Lane, stormwater projects, funding for the mandated 800MHz radios,
repairs to the bridges, and other special projects.

Discussion was held on the Fire Department’s request for the number and costs for the radios. Webb
Fuller has been in discussion with the Fire Department and he recommends the 2500 series radio at a cost
of $2,700 each with a cap of 38 radios for the Fire Department. The Police Department will need radios
also.

Council Member Pflzenmayer supports funding the CIP. He feels Chieahauk Trail should be the number
one priority road improvement even knowing the high cost of a million dollars is due to stormwater
issues. This road is used the most by residents. Money should be set aside for Phase 2 of the canal
dredging. The costs of the emergency radios for the Fire Department should not be included in the CIP.

Discussion was held on whether the Town or the Fire Department is to own and be responsible for the
radios.

Webb Fuller stated that in looking at the Town’s contract with the Fire Department, he doesn’t know how
the department was operating. Mr. Fuller feels the department was being underfunded. Mr. Fuller
recommended that the tax revenues from 2.75 cents of rate be appropriated for Fire Department operating
costs.

Council Member Stroud stated the Fire Department keeps asking for more funding, and now they are
asking for $500,000. He does not support this. He does not support an over-all tax increase of 4-5 cents.

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Recessed Budget Meeting

May IZ 2010
Page 1 of2



Council Members Stroud and Pfizenmayer agree that the Fire Department should get no more than
$350,000 per the contract and, $200,000 for the radios. They each stated the Fire Department should get
what the contract reads and a specific amount for the radios.

Council Member Pfizenmayer stated he would like to talk at the July meeting about the Fire Department
becoming a department of the town. He stated he is not voting for the budget if the Fire Department
proposed appropriation stays in.

Council Member Pfizenmayer prefers the Public Works Supervisor position and the year-round recycle
pickup be delayed. He isn’t sure the expanded life guard service for shoulder season is needed either.

Council Member Hess supports the year-round recycling pickup. But she is in favor of delaying the
Public Works Supervisor position to allow the new Manager to review, cut back on legal fees, and cut
Public Works uniforms.

Mayor Denny supports keeping the additional Police Officer position but not the Public Works
Supervisor. He prefers that the new Manager decide. He prefers keeping the COLA, and Public Works
should possibly be considered called the Buildings and Grounds Department.

The Finance Officer stated in order to prepare the budget it appears from the discussion the budget should
include an employee COLA, a Police Officer, ocean rescue expansion, some CIP amount, and some
amount for the Fire Department. But it appears to not include the Public Works Supervisor position, cut
legal fees, cut merit raises, and cut Public Works uniforms.

Hearing no other business Mayor Denny moved to adjourn the meeting at 11:00 a.m. Council Member
Hess seconded. The motion passed with Mayor Denny and Council Members Hess, Siroud, Pflzenmayer
voting aye. Council Member Kowalski absent.

Respectfully submitted:

~ s~L~
Carrie Gordin, Town Clerk

Town ofSou(hern Shores, NC
Recessed Budget Meeting

May12, 2010
Page 2 of2



Town of Southern Shores
5375 N. Virginia Dare Trail, Southern Shores, NC 27949

Phone 252-261-2394 / Fax 252-255-0876
info~southernshores-nc.gov

www.southerrishores-nc.gov

Council Meeting
June 1,2010
7:00 p.m.-Pitts Center

The Southern Shores Town Council met on June 1,2010 at the Pins Center.

The following Council Members were present: Mayor Hal Denny, Mayor pro tem Jodi Hess, Council
Members Kevin Stroud, Jim Pfizenmayer and George Kowalski.

Also present were: Interim Town Manager Chief David Kole, Town Attorney Ben Gallop and Town
Clerk Carrie Gordin.

Mayor Denny called the meeting to order at7:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. He asked that a
moment of silence beheld for the family of Herb Hawkins, long time resident, and for our troops serving
around the world.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Council Member Hess moved to approve agenda as presented. Council Member Pfizenmayer seconded.
Council Member Hess seconded. The motion passed with Mayor Denny and Council Members Hess,
Stroud, Pfizenmayer and Kowalski voting aye.

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT

Don Bierwerth, 249 Sea Oats Trail, announced it is his 83d birthday. He stated he was a previous
Council Member. He stated he has come before Council many times trying to get resolve to his
problems. He stated that he has certain issues with the Town and he once again provided Council with a
letter. He stated the Pitts Center occupancy use has been changed without the proper health department
permit. He has asked for many years to get a copy of an original health permit for the Pills Center and he
has not received it. He is asking that he gets a copy of the CAMA report and if his thoughts are confirmed
he will file a lawsuit with CAMA that the Town be required to pay the portion of the money that was used
to build the Pitts Center and with conjunction with that he is going to file that the interest due on that sum
for the last ten years be paid. He doesn’t take pleasure in doing this but if the law is broken he wants
something done.

Mayor Denny explained Council normally doesn’t respond to public comments but he feels the public
should be aware that Mr. Bierwerth has brought this to Council since 2002 as well as sending letters to
the District Attorney, three town attorneys and to staff for review and all have found no cause. He stated
Mr. Bierwerth is entitled to be heard as long as he keeps coming to meetings.

[Clerk’s Note: A copy of Mr. Bierwerth’s letter is hereby attached as Exhibit A].

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 1, 2010
Page 1 of 14



APPROVAL OF MJNUTES - April 20,2010

Council Member Hess requested to table approval of the minutes to the next meeting until she reviews
them for comment with the Town Clerk. Council agreed.

CONSENT AGENDA-None

REPORTS

Planning Board —Planning Advisory Group (PAG) Recap-May 17, 2010

Sam Williams stated the Planning Board did not meet this month. Council has copy of PAG report.

[Clerk’s Note: A copy of the PAG May 17, 2010 recap is hereby attached as Exhibit B].

Southern Shores Volunteer Fire Department-None

Police Department

Chief Kole presented the monthly report.

Southern Shores Civic Association

Karen Kranda, President, stated Paul Kapinos has completed the crossover improvements. Also they are
evaluating the SSCA properties and would welcome comments from Council on ways to improve the
wading beach and the park areas. Brush is being cut at the Sea Oats Park to have better visibility since
the vandalism. Clean-up of seaweed at the wading beach has been done but it will cost $6,000 to have it
removed. The wading beach has been closed since April 26 due to water quality. Since the Town
removed the trash/recycle cans at Public Works trash has been a problem at the Hillcrest Beach parking
lot. The SSCA and AT&T are in negotiations on the construction of a telecommunication tower at the
triangle site.

Council Member Pfizenmayer asked what happened to the flag at the triangle park. K. Kranda stated the
rope broke but was repaired in time for Memorial Day but needs additional repair.

Chicahauk Property Owners Association

Marianne Landrum thanked Chief Kole for the Police Department’s response to the speeders on Pudding
Pan Lane by placing the radar trailer there. It did cut down on the speeders. She complimented the
landscaping at the Town’s parking lot at Chicahauk Trail saying it looks great.

Canal Dredging Project

Tom Bennett, Project Manager, reported the contractor has reached an agreement with two property
owners for spoil disposal sites. There still may be a need for additional sites in that area. He stated he,
George Wood and Joe Anlauf met with the regulatory agencies in Washington, NC today and it was a
very positive meeting. The contractor and Joe Anlauf did a good job in presenting our plans and the
agencies will make their recommendations. The Town is only asking for a minor modification to our
current permit and it should take no more than 6-8 weeks for a decision. He is hopeflil to have the
modified permit by mid- August and start dredging the first part of October. He stated the new contractor

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 1, 2010
Page 2 of 14



is recommending the inside (difficult part) of the canals be done first and work toward the channel.
Following some technical explanations and questions on if the process is going to be ready to meet the
dredge cycle Council Member Hess recommended it appears it is time the contractor meets with Council
to address their proposals.

Council agreed to place this item on the June 15 agenda.

PUBLIC HEARING —Proposed FY 2010-2011 Budget

Mayor Denny stated in opening the public hearing those wishing to speak ehch have three minutes.

Mayor Denny addressed the public by reading his personally prepared statement on the Town Manager’s
proposed TOSS Budget FY 2011, June 1,2010. “The proposed budget, which I hope many of you have
taken the opportunity to examine on our web site, largely results from guidance and suggestions given the
Interim Town Manager and his staff by Council at its January retreat and at budget workshops as the
budget was being developed. The Operating Budget calls for a 1.25 (one and one fourth) cent increase in
the ad valorem tax rate to a new rate of 11 cents. That increase, if enacted, will result in $225,000 of new
revenue for the day to day operation of our Town. The budget provides for an additional police officer,
increased lifeguard services, increased recycle service, and increased support for the Volunteer Fire
Department. It also covers mandated increases for items such as State retirement funding, medical
insurance premiums, and landfill tipping fees. One might ask “How can all these increases be covered
with the 1 and ¼ cents? Answer: The Town Manager and his staff did so by scrubbing all but the bare
essentials from the original budget requests of the various departments. The increase for the Volunteer
Fire Department has been made necessary because of the underfunding of the Department by the Town
during the last four years. As a result of that underfhnding, the Fire Department, in order to sustain the
level of fire protection nebessary to maintain the Town’s fire rating, depleted its reserves and, indeed,
used proceeds from the sale of some of its assets. The increase proposed in this budget should go far
toward restoring a partnership relationship between the Town and the VFD in this vital area of public
safety. Now, with respect to the Capital Improvement Program. As has been stated previously, a Capital
Improvement Program is meaningless uhless it is funded. Saying we will fund it as “money becomes
available” means nothing unless specific action is taken to make the money available. Saying we will
make capital improvements on a “pay as you go” basis means nothing unless specific action is taken to
raise the money with which to pay. Unfortunately, those two meaningless approaches seem to have been
the hallmark of Council for the past several years. In the meantime, more and more of our streets have
fallen into disrepair, well identified storm water issues remain to be dealt with, planning for replacement
of one town bridge, maybe two, needs to be incorporated in the Capital Improvement Program, and our
canals simply must be dredged. Continued neglect of our infrastructure will degrade the quality of life
that brought people to our town in the first place and property values will fall. I believe this Council is in
broad agreement with respect to the need to fund the Capital Improvement Program. We want to start
funding it on a regular, sustained basis. To do otherwise is to ignore our responsibility for stewardship of
the Town’s assets. Thus, the proposed levy of 3 cents, exclusively for capital improvements, is not an
unwelcome recommendation from the Town Manager. But. ..this is the Town Manager’s proposed budget.
True, Council has had substantial input but it is not the Council’s budget until we enact a budget
ordinance, which must be done before mid-night, June 30th We have scheduled a budget workshop for
next Wednesday, June 9th, 7:00 p.m., at which time we will be considering your views, as expressed to
Council at this public hearing”.

Frank Sciacehitano, 203 Wax Myrtle Trail, stated he has knowledge on budget process and he has been
responsible for a 17 million dollar budget as a national director of finance and planning and as a vice-
president of marketing. He understands both sides of a budget, but speaking on behalf of his family and

Town ofSouthern Shores. NC
Council Meeting

June 1, 2010
Page 3 of 14



his neighbors the proposed tax rate increase is unacceptable. Instead of a 40% tax increase why not
develop new leadership ideas and strategies that would result in spending decreases and budget control.
He doesn’t know anything about Fire Departments but he feels the Town’s people are obsessed with the
Fire Department. He questions why the Fire Department’s 10-year contract is being rescinded. He asked
why, in this depressed economy, is there a need for a employee salary increase across the board. He asked
if there was a cost analysis done to decide if an additional police officer is needed. He asked has this
Town ever had a 40% tax increase.

Norm St. Laurent, 63 Hickory Trail, he echoes Mr. Sciacchitano comments. Passing a budget is one of the
basic fundamental responsibilities of government and he hopes Council takes this seriously. He asked if
there have been any closed session regarding the budget, are there minutes and are those minutes
available to the public.

Mayor Denny responded to Mr. St. Laurent that absolutely there have not been any closed sessions
regarding the budget process; everything has been done in open session. Gray Berryman, 37 Skyline
Road, stated he is opposed to the size of the proposed tax increase. He spoke previously on the occupancy
tax increase and he was disappointed that Council reversed their decision and agreed to support that tax
increase. He stated the Police Department has done a great job but he doesn’t feel know is the time to
expand the Department. He agrees the Capital Improvement Fund needs funding but he would think 1% is
enough.

Joel Newton, 127 Otter Slide Lane, addressed his concerns from the May 18 Budget Presentation. He
questioned the need for an additional Police Officer and the season expansion for Ocean Rescue. He
would like to know what is the basis for the additional funds for the fire department. Is it the right time to
expand recycling services. He would ask when the last merit raised and COLA were given to the
employees. Bonuses may be something to consider. He supports the infrastructure as proposed but he has
concerns about other operating perspective and our services. He thinks the budget sends the wrong
message in theses economical times and we should look at how to sustain what we are doing now and in
the future. In doing business as usual we need to come down to realty.

James Kranda, 80 Poteskeet Trail, stated this is the first reasonable and realistic budget to be presented in
the years he has lived here. He is proud to see Council take the high road and taken the approach by
looking at the tough and demanding issues. Past Council have not been good stewards of the Town. He
thanked Council for honoring the offices that you hold to safe guard the assets and infrastructure of the
Town for the foreseeable future while recognizing the pain that we will all feel with the increase of the
taxes.

Mac McDanel, 245 Woodland Drive, provided an analogy in which where would the Country Club be if
they raised the dues every year from 1972 to 2010 for cost of living. They lost sixteen million over a
thirty year period. The Town is now in a place of catch-up and the taxes need to be raised. He blessed the
Council.

Moe Utley, 132 E. Holly Trail, stated that he supported Mayor Denny during his campaign. He
commented that 75% of the Market Place is empty and many houses are for sale in Town. We know how
to spend but we need to tighten our belts. His insurance went up 300% and utilities keeping going up. We
have the best Police Department and Fire Department but how many cars do we need.
County taxes are going up and we don’t know what the Federal government is going to do. We need
someone to look through different eyes, look at what we need not want we want. Get feedback from the
general public.

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 1, 2010
Page 4 of14



David Sanders, 158 Beech Tree Trail, stated he has looked over the Town’s last six years of budgets and
minutes he has seen the struggles over that time. Council attempted several times to put together a CIP
but failed. Now it is catch-up time but it is the worst time in the past six years, economically, to be doing
this. This budget proposal with a 3-cent for the CIP is a common sense approach based on reason and
reality. With a continued “no growth” of revenues how can the Town be expected to maintain the
infrastructure. There can be no savings plan. Building a CIP is the way to go if you don’t have the money
you can’t pay as you go. He supports the 3 cent tax increase for the CIP. In commenting on the 10-year
Fire Department contract, the contract allows for the Fire Department to request additional funds over a
ten-year period. He stated during his research a previous Council Member stated seven or eight people
speaking at a public hearing doesn’t necessarily represent the majority of the Town, which was Mayor
Smith.

Bob Harvey, Fire Chief and Town resident, stated he would like to address some comments. He stated
there is no great conspiracy. He has met with Mayor Denny and other members of Council, Town
Manager and Consultant in open meetings, yes the meetings have been heated and frustrating but options
were explored but we have arrived at a point where both parties have won. He stated we have a ten-year
contract with a second year rate of 2 cents with the option to request additional funds if needed. Both
parties knew when the contract was signed knew 2 cents would not be enough. The Fire Department has
told the Town for the last five years that funding is needed for the radios but Town did not provide the
funds. The Fire Department has a plan to finance the radios over a five-year period and the Town will
reimburse its share of the debt service over five years. He stated it has been said the increase of the
Town’s taxes is due to the Fire Department not true. He stated this year’s Fire Department budget
$553,850 is less than last year’s $555,322 last year’s budget. The Fire Department put up $187,000 to
balance the budget by selling off assets and using reserves due to the Town’s underpayment. The Fire
Department has considered charging for services or selling off assets. The Fire Department is not hiding
anything. The Fire Department is annually audited and anyone can come to look at their budget.

Ed Cowell, 134 Beech Tree Trail, stated if you don’t like paying taxes then you shouldn’t live in North
Carolina. He supports the Police Department and if you lower the level of service of the Fire Department
then your insurance rates will increase. Look to see if something can be cut and do your best.

Ray Midgett, 154 Duck Woods Drive, stated he didn’t know this was going to turn into a fire department
hearing. He commended Council on their vision but the timing is off with a tax increase. He stated he doesn’t
have extra money for additional taxes. He does support the employees and the police officers. He is concerned
about where the money is going to come from for the canal dredging and road repairs. He is not happy with the
Fire Department’s request. He asked Council not to raise our taxes 43%.

Sam Williams, 109 Pudding Pan Lane, stated Council has done the right thing in considering the CIP and
we have waited too long and the longer we wait the worse the roads will become. He would recommend a
2-cent tax for the CIP. He asked Council to look at some of the services to see if they can be cut, look at
the Police Department request for an additional officer and if it is needed. Look at salary and overtime for
officers. He suggested Council consider what has been said tonight and look at ways to cut back some
areas but not eliminate all the increases. Consider a penny increase instead of a penny and a quarter and
two cents for the CIP instead of three cents. He appreciates Council’s efforts but now is not the right time
to raise taxes.

Carl Seto, 112 Turtle Pond Lane, stated the Town roads are falling apart he doesn’t like to see taxes go up
but something needs to be done with the roads. Property won’t sell if the roads are bad. He would like to
see the Town having a business license. Outsiders are coming in and taking over the local jobs and not
paying taxes. He supports the increase to get the roads fixed.

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 1. 2010
Page 5 of 14



Hearing no other comments Mayor Denny closed the public hearing.

OLD BUSINESS - None

NEW BUSINESS

Audit Contract

Mayor Denny stated the Local Government Commission requires the contract be approved annually even
though Council approved a three-year audit contract. The contract is the same amount ($16,500) and this
is the second year.

Mayor Denny moved to approve the 2009 audit contract as presented. Cpuncil Member Hess seconded.
The motion passed with Mayor Denny and Council Members Hess, Stroud, Pfizenmayer and Kowalski
voting aye.

Retiree Health and Dental Insurance Benefits Policy (amended)

The Finance Officer presented this to Council previously. The Personnel Attorney has reviewed the
policy.

Council Member Kowaiski moved to adopt the policy. Mayor Denny seconded.

Council Stroud had questions regarding the policy as well as other Council Members.

The Town Attorney recommended tabling this issue and he will review and make changes to bring back
to Council.

Council Member Kowaiski withdrew his motion. Mayor Denny withdrew his second.

The policy will be presented at a later date. Council agreed.

OTHER ITEMS

Town Manager

Police Chief Kole reported the area at E. Dogwood where Mr. St. Laurent reported he fell has been
repaired.

Town Attorney-None

Mayor

Mayor Denny thanked Chief Kole for taking on the additional duties as Town Manager. He stated the new
Town Manager will attend the next Council meeting.

Mayor Denny reported he participated in a joint NC/VA hurricane evacuation exercise. He stated at some
time Dare County may lose the evacuation route through Virginia. He also will be participating in the
County Control Group exercise next Wednesday.

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June], 2010
Page 6 ofI4



Council

Council Member Pfizenmayer stated he does not support Mayor Denny’s comments made before the
budget public hearing and he hopes to see everyone at the budget workshop.

Council Member Stroud stated he agrees with Council Member Pfizenmayer.

Council Member Kowaiski stated, regarding Mr. Bierwerth’s comments, he remembers this has been
going on for several years and Mr. Bierwerth has been answered. He remembers Council agreeing that
this would not be discussed an9more and that the attorney was not to respond.

The Town Attorney stated he was instructed by Council not to respond to Mr. Bierwerth and would not
do so unless directed otherwise. He stated there is no merit to Mr. Bierwerth’s claims.

Alvin Rountree, Code Enforcement Administrator, stated he has reviewed Mr. Bierwerth’s claims and
found no validation. He stated there is no occupancy issue. He stated proper protocol is when a person
states they are going to sue the Town there should be no ffirther discussion with that person.

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT

Chief Harvey announced the Fire Department is holding a workshop at the Pills Center, Friday,
June 1 land he is inviting elected officials and attorneys and other police and fire personnel regarding fire
safety for firemen. The Battalion Chief from Salisbury, NC is providing a seminar on lessons learned
from a tragic fire and the need for radios. Additional seminar will be led in Buxton.

Chief Kole announced that on June 14 the Tall Pine Bridge will be shut down for two days (day time
only) for repairs. Notices and signs will be posted.

Comments on the Mid-Currituck Bridge need to be in by June 5, 2010.

Hearing no other business Mayor Denny moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:15 p.m. Council Member
Hess seconded. The motion passed with Mayor Denny and Council Members Hess, Stroud, Pflzenmayer
and Kowalski voting aye.

Respeetfiilly submitted:

arrie Gordin, Town Clerk

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 1. 2010
Page 7of14



Exhibit A

249 Sea Cain Thit.
Salilfiiirp Shoi~ NQ 27949

Juo 1. 2010

Tos’m of Soudien, SIi0re~
~375 N. Vtrgirda Darn Itaji.
&igternShore@NC 2794S

1~: Lmd eontn~~-i. iiha~ Sky Building

Tn i1e~~J oj~jnjon. “Plun Sky Le~n1 Mlhuthj’pntpartd br Trn~nAIbcncy Th nac”Mdttir. dEed
N~tmb~r 10. ]99?~ the bu nfsndina con~1mints nEtlic PEMA grant ~c~s cenLto the Town The flW
drn land in v~tcd In ~ Minnie Ic Chn Thvn, OISOiiIlIerIL SILUn~ mid whtm LbtflJXIt Sky BuMiingwas built
It tece,me pmtrnid pace] ctthcinrid itaclL.AttomcyWbitc tcti&ac.Ibce pincdwe~ ror~elL~ cite
jwopi~r, reafing do’.ni lie huildiagvriio longer uting Lhe building i&pi.pones nquhedby die gnnt. Flint
ofaLl. the Town h.dtIOOIIfl’ FEMA tatthc1nai1dii,g~’an ma 1~ar “eedel &nul]ieñeed BlueSb
pmjx~n ndthe rapenLLIIsposflLo.L IJbICOOLLOCL Tue [own Dt~crievellk’d the Oingc to Asscnlbt’IOff cc
Dc~ipadn.crthcpcnntthugprnb1r.un nndrnod in my kecas In tlWFtlwn GCSOutleem Shorn.

Ian it, “B[iicSkvLcgat Authrn~ prcicsiInd attlit Toi~ Ccqwicll iiieellngem StiattA 2~02, I
outlinadthel’flSA Cirantrthlwl, I ftrmer,’~5lo~&kyi,W thc1(cmP.P~tascntbycat~&msil
to the TuwnofSuLEirri Sbarcs no Januai~ l& 2O0~ din pralilern ooiicerning to~ Grail wi~ag.±
pits~c’tv~., Th~Town hins neverØven meareplyb thMA Grants cocplainta prcnriitoi in catli~

TatheS~sringo120Q~, 1 ti~wi@oisL a. bosnia 100 L’cacn OccupannyPcr,nit trndbcnm paired In dIeI’FLU
6n’iiJbuj. .1 weutto tbrTomt’s office ~rnquatcdaCopy nfthD Pt~AAiSooIIieri SIior~i cuoLrnd on
Fcbirn~y6, 2O~S. To order LuprevoM coomu.iooj Indatown cm}q~ciotout ahcdocuntentlwnkddisg ft~r
Lcd then I B~CddIC rccoiümcpesrfomt. weetthatk several 4I’rnsto lookut.ybatiu,a~ouwesoatho
FEMA Agit~nwtcaoc1 catered mb ae~,1diaou~ioos with Mn Smith, otown cinpinync, abopi flue wjjGlr
1€Iij~ SLy wobkio. With her, I tricdtosqcMr. a niecdmj~ with~omcoto o~ Call, Lh,TOwIi Anomcy ~d
niyselftc c1e~v u~uycon1tdoo orrdtc csidrcp-obkc. ‘That cffiu.t Failed. Slnc~ diattlme. lit lime teLLers Lo
Tat Munmmmtce, Ms. Ci~’lcs Rcod , T llftyo m~ejgsvquu4cd th I!ISMA data. No FE3t{A ocoflethan lx’ ~nt
~rn JJy thelaw, Ift’~ CAMS C an nvUbe en satLJ1m51a~ut~J.

In ith~ nely leetar ~iiL t~itLe by Ibm ALLOmLy Donald LMrRoc~ Jr., dated Deceniha, 4, 10~7I AW~rMy
MoRse atafra ~L1 hr,t net rcvim~tdttn 1~I k45RV poj~l R.reaLL,gretmeait between the atxo and fndcml
.iloVerRTh1emit~ a.itl lie lewC.

Attooiey White wrotcki, Loplimion cJiNo~egtkr i9, 1997 ~iacI the cbamujcrto2DD paean
AsscmbM)fficc Occu1 ocnorm’ed in 1901. Ailovetcy White onverwioco a legal opinion on the
~CGttt0bGv tb~me, .lSonmcy MoRcc ,ihnold liamt irøjiblc<l hi~ uoialons to wbarhawad In 2001 am4
later..

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June], 2010
PageS of 14



249 S,a Cal; ThIL.
SanIIi,~rn Shon~. TIC 2Th19

Juz*l.2010

Thvm of Soudien, SIioa€
5375 N. Virginia Darn Thu.
Soo4tletn Sbore~, NC 27949

Ib~ Lund Contm*~-h luau S&yi3uildiug

Tn s1e~i oJl.ilon, “Plut’ Sky Lq~n] AuIIwi~j’pcapartd b7 TrnAuAltney Thotnri~WIdttJr. doted
•Nuvembar 10. ~99?~ the buiLding Lndinn ounaints of the FEMA g~nnt~n cs,ittothe Town The 4111510
the land ii ve~t,2d In ftt~ srm~lo in Cheu Thwa of Soolitern SI Lun’~ and wh~ LbelJIue Sky BuilcMuigwas built
It tet~ime pmtrrA pc,roel ettTclsnd ilazli.Attomcywbitc tcti&actlba p dtns~ rnIri.i~ che
pVopi~r, rca{Ing do’iii ihs huikJ[r~uriw lunger ln[ng Lbs bLILIIIIUJj ttrpi.poscs nquütdby die gmnt. Fint
ofiji, the Town h dt,notit~’ TEI4A tattbebllildil,gnq on longar “eaWl rin-rnlIJLenteJ BIaoS&y
pI1Ipr~s~c anitbe raptest~II$posl1[o.L blsICoOL[Oo& ilK T0~ acvtr,c~sa3ec1 the chnngp to Assemblylofficc
Uc~ipai~eaor&cpcnnithogpmb1rann nodimod in my Icacts Co tlw.Town etSoulicero Shorn

lao it. ‘BtacStyLcgat Autn,~’, prc~czitod attlic Tonii Comidl ~eeI1agun MarthA 2002,1
outlinsdtb. FflSA Granaptohisin. lit retter, flLun &kyan~ the Kern?. ?ittaCent&’ scaby cati~od. o~i1
to thu ThvuofSouthrrni Sborc, am Jnnumy UI. 20GZ th ltl,IeEfl oOILCtsoibg Lu flMA Ur.ctt wt~ag.is
prea~ntvU.. ThsTowo A’os a v.rgiven ma a raply to [JiMA (hauls conoplaint, pTCsc41~ ñ~ cath IU~ot.

LthcSpriflgc12QQ~, [E~wi4ui~L u. b~u iOU L’c,a’a OccupascyPcrmit hadbccu ponted in th~1’14~
6uiitliitg. .1 went to the 7omC~ office and 1-aquentedacopy ofilia PK)iIAiSouI 4ec” Sloics cuolrnd on
Febi,~wy 6~ 2008.1,’ ~dvr Luprev~ntcom1osk,ri. I knidetown dak~wintautrhc4 rite~cE’.t1odthsg fez
neil then I ni~icdthe rccoidiapointfonn. wenthatk sa.nl tlmr4to kok~ntintbrnonwas~athc
FEMA A~w wiGeoni eotu~d ‘wlu ws~nzl ji,ci,rnious with Mn Smith, atrnvn einplnyeq abow (ito wth~Ja
XIrs~ Sky wobkiu. Withbcr, I thcdto ,aoodnR wlthsomeoto oacmiacil, theTownAflorocy ni4
n~ie1frn dair u flOaCLI,IUO onthe cntircpob)ao. ‘That effOrt failed. Sinee thattImo~ Ni line letters to
Tç~,j Mnaagvr, Ms. Cia]cs Reod,Thi~v a~nnquu~tcd lb L’LMA dab Ni, FEMA ecrjflact baa hi ~nt
10 rnti.. .IJy Lbelaw,if,.u CAMAC actsbouUbeTho€n ~eottoin~1en,

India nn~t later ~i’L (caitte b1 torniAttmnay Donald [MeRe; IrS, dated 1)aeen,hr 4, 10117, Mloin4y
Moflre stntes~ “1 have not rccicw~d&eRlnsSkvpoj~I Rnnsitgrttmentbttvltc the stern and ~&rai
n)vnranleIkte ailti I.e lQwd~.

Attorney White wmtelii, Icgeiopüiion cn}{oyoat”er 19, 19fl tmd tha cboq~est.i2DD pcmon
AsscmbF>:~Ofilce (3cmij~.ncyccc.nned 1n1901. Mlaancy Whiteneverwmto a legal opinion on die
OOOt~Gv ~bMnc Adnatcy McThzc aitauld b’t im~Jfied his ucinions Lu what Iiatccrmd in 2fl01 an.!
later..

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 1.2010
Page QofI4



The t~4’ayn~ b. Soitm Rborts nhobId i’uclcmLqod that [‘fliA .n~y hn~c1icr. rFthts on bc Town
Cnita_Jvtanta copy of tI~ F 4. c~c~,ttocmnpIcte1y’aitjt~n t~sa frttids Lcttcr an correct.

a.
Snot Theque~t flrPublic Rwcyth,Sfl200i.VKMAØOnl dU~u1nt:jIt,

1112 Cui~iJ~nd T~c~
The VirejiIia-PEIc4

- Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 1.2010
Page lOaf 14



Tot Scnithcrn SIxorc5 Town (I.,rk

acrE: ________________

REQUEST I?OR1’LJEUC UECOSDS
l’owm of ScrntIi~rn Shores

Pursuant t~ NorU-i Camliria Public Recor&~ Iaw~ ~‘OLJ m~y request Town
pLibflc rectirdt To ensure thet you r€ceive tie reccrds ycu ruquest,

please compl’~te the fajiowing.

~ fetca, C-*.-fl

MailingM&c&: flY 5~’~Y it.

CitvS 5 SLaLe/—2-. zwZflZ2’

c1:~!!’ )t-61’ ~

:E1~fl Mdress: __________________________

Pkave he .iperufr as loch ~wcoi4~) yws are nque. Afre will 6e chargtdfiw each caj~’
based iq~on the cost qfnr2ci~g:Fm ecqn~ ens) the cost oJs~phsØ~aTh~ ~a~lisr~blg) from the
Ybs~ fee ,ditjdzda or t~thi~1 arm!. Jfyos~ ~wt wmething rsh~r flxrn wz jxqJer a~ pkaw speci~
the ~,aIkr desir.id (~.g d~s~i~ CD) DVI), mdv wveUt, eta) The Thwve will ~t4ve top-o~’~de
yo~c the public recc~~4~) reqttestl i7! a

Resnr4(~9 Rcqiiestcd: &~~~D,’iJ& /tk.nv r~es.,)fl~1/&

tiff’ ‘~ö’fl’ fl

øt~~t~ _____________

Picase cornilci nit be~w ~i)d v.Lth au c~thuate of I]w co5t tq,roauce the reand(s) nquea’tvd:

~ A
-—-For Thwn Uve

Ljate 1~ecnfved:

flfrfl~~ SerniUn~e~i ro&quessen -

)?ecoivedby:_ —-______________________

flL~S~11Ze~d~’ G~I ~¼joLt~ Rm~irt . W)~-J 7~&~&t ~3S~! ?~2t~S

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 1.2010
Page 11 of 14



Exhibit B

To: Southern Shores Town Council (Hal Denny, Jodi Hess, George Kowaiski,
Jim Pfizenmayer, Kevin Stroud)

Copies: Interim Town Manager (Chief David Kole)

Town Attorney (Ben Gallop)

Town Staff (Pat Forrester, Carrie Gordin, Alvin Rountree, Merrie Smith,
Bonnie Swain)

Planning Board (Mike Florez, Bill Gleason, Larry Lawhon, Bob Palombo,
Jay Russell, Nancy Wendt, Sam Williams and ETJ Rep, Ed Overton)

From: Wes Haskett, Town Planner

Date: May 28, 2010

Re: Recap, PAG Working Session May 17, 2010

PB! PAG RECOMMENDED ACTIONS FOR THE TOWN COUNCIL - None

PAG MEETING RECAP May 17, 2010

The Planning Advisory Group working session convened at 7:00 pm. Planning Board Members
Sam Williams, Nancy Wendt, Mike Florez, Jay Russell, alternate member Larry Lawhon,
alternate member Bill Gleason, Code Enforcement Administrator Alvin Rountree, Town Planner
Wes Haskett, and Ross Mitchell were present.

Planned agenda items for the meeting included:

1. Height Calculation ZTA
2. General Project Status

Nancy Wendt asked for any additions or changes to the agenda. There were none.

HEIGHT CALCULATION ZTA (Nancy Wendt)

As background for the non-PAG meeting attendees, most who represented the building
community, Nancy Wendt presented the history of the proposed height calculation Zoning Text
Amendment (ZTA).

In 2008, the Code Enforcement Department noticed that more and more permits for proposed
homes to be built on hilly or low lots were being denied as a result of the height calculation
method currently being used by TOSS. This method uses the lowest corner of the proposed
structure to calculate the building height. Often this calculation resulted in denied permit
application appeals, produced negative drainage impacts, and filling and substantial grading of

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
C’ouncil Meeting

June 1, 2010
Page 12 of 14



lots that were difficult to develop. A proposal to amend the currentheight calculation method
from the lowest corner of the adjacent grade to the average of the four corners was addressed
by the Planning Board in March, 2010. The Planning Board unanimously recommended
approval of the proposed ZTA to the Town Council.

On April 6, 2010 the Town Council considered the proposed ZTA. While a few meeting
attendees spoke in support of the proposed ZTA, several citizens spoke in opposition to the
proposed ZTA due to concerns with increased building height (compared to structures which
were constructed using the current calculation method). The number of lots impacted and the
need to more fully address drainage issues were also raised. The Town Council rejected the
proposed ZTA and asked that the Planning Board revisit the proposed ZTA.

In reconsidering the proposed ZTA, the PAG intends to meet with various groups (e.g., building
and real estate representatives, and civic associations/property owner associations) to more
fully understand their concerns and possible ways to address these concerns in a revised ZTA
proposal. This meeting with the building representatives is the first of these discussions.

The goals of the Planning Board &e to establish a height calculation method that:
1. Considers the concerns raised by the Council and TOSS citizens.
2. Enables all platted lots (both undeveloped and those to be redeveloped) to be

reasonably developed.
3. Permits, as often as possible, property owners to build a house they would like to

build.
4. Increases/maintains property values of surrounding properties.
5. Ensures that the development of lots with holes or slopes do not create safety

hazards or drainage problems.
6. Does not or minimally increases the roof line height and/or the size of the structure.

Andy Ward, Jeff Sawyer, Brian McDonald, Mark Martin, and Willo Kelly provided feedback to
the PAG on those issues of most concern to the building industry and possible solutions to
those issues. They also indicated that they would be willing to continue to participate in the
proposed ZTA amendment process as needed.

The PAG and Town Staff will continue to gather information from other interested groups,
develop a revised version of the proposed ZTA and hold a public workshop before presenting a
revised ZTA proposal to the Planning Board and Town Council for review.

LAND USE PLAN (Sam Williams)

Sam Williams reported that the Town Council will provide feedback on the Land Use Plan
Update at their May 1 8~ meeting and that he and Wes Haskett will offer to meet with the
Council members to address comments if needed.

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION PLAN (Larry Lawhon)

Larry Lawhon reported that the Citizen Communication Plan committee would be holding their
first meeting within the next week and that they are currently looking in to the number of citizens
that need to be reached.
PARKS. RECREATION, AND OPEN SPACE PLAN (Ross Mitchell)

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 1, 2010
Page 13 of 14



Ross Mitchell reported that his first step in the development of a Parks, Recreation and Open
Space Plan was to visit the properties owned by the SSCA. Several of the properties (open
space) were created when streets were constructed and the access rights to the open spaces
were given only to the citizens that lived on the adjacent street/block. Other vacant properties
include part of Sea Oats Park and one large tract near the SSCA tennis courts which was next
to the platted undeveloped road to be used by the Fire Department or for evacuation. Ross will
research the vacant property and adjacent road to see if there are any legal restrictions
associated with the road that could restrict development of the adjacent SSCA property.
WIND GENERATION PLAN (Mike Florez)

Mike Florez reported that the Wind Committee was currently working on drafting the final report
forthe Wind Generation Plan. The Wind Committee will conduct further research into
recommended facility heights and discuss their findings at their next meeting.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN (Wes Haskett)

Wes Haskett reported that he and Joe Anlauf had met and discussed the Emerald Isle
Stormwater Ordinance, State stormwater requirements, and a map that divides the Town into
four stormwater districts. They will present their findings at the June 7”~ PAG meeting.

UPCOMING MEETINGS & PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS

1. PAG Working Session June 7,2010
• Height Calculation ZTA
• Stormwater Management Plan
• General Project Status

2. Planning Board Application Review meeting June21 2010.
3. PAG Working Session June 21, 2010 following Planning Board meeting.

ADJOURNMENT

The PAG meeting adjoumed at 9:25 pm.

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meellng

June 1, 2010
Page 14 of 14



Town of Southern Shores
5375 N. Virginia Dare Trail, Southern Shores, NC 27949

Phone 252-261-2394 / Fax 252-255-0876
inIo~southernshores-nc.gov

www.soutkernshores-ne. gov

Corrected
Council Meeting
June 15, 2010
8:00 a.m. - Pitts Center

The Southern Shores Town Council met on June 15, 2010 at the Pins Center.

The following Council Members were present: Mayor Hal Denny, Mayor pro tern Jodi Hess, Council
Members Kevin Stroud, Jim Pfizenmayer and George Kowalski.

Also present were: Town Manager Peter Rascoe, Town Attorney Ben Gallop and Town Clerk
Carrie Gordin.

Mayor Denny called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and led the Pledge ofAllegiance. He stated several
long-time residents recently passed away and he asked that a moment of silence be held for Lin Ward, Joe
Mondelo, Randall Wrenn, one of the founders of the Southern Shores Volunteer Fire Department and our
armed forces.

Mayor Denny then wished Webb Fuller a Happy Birthday.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor Denny moved to amend the agenda to include a closed session following Item Xffl. Announcements.
Council Member Hess seconded. The motion passed with Mayor Denny, Hess, Stroud, Pfizenmayer and
Kowalski voting aye.

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT-None

APPROVAL OF MINUTES —April 20, 2010

Council Member Hess moved to approve the corrected April 20, 2010 minutes as presented. Council
Member Pfizenmayer seconded. The motion passed with Mayor Denny, Hess, Stroud, Pfizcnmayer and
voting aye.

CONSENT AGENDA

FY 2009-2010 Budget Amendments #18 and #19 and Dare County Tax Pickups
and Releases

Council Member Hess moved to approve the Consent agenda as presented. Mayor Denny seconded. The
motion passed with Mayor Denny, Hess, Stroud, Pflzenmayer and Kowaiski voting aye.

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 15. 2010
Page 1 of9



[Clerk’s Note: Copies of Budget Amendment #18 and #19 and Tax Pickups and Releases are hereby
attached as Exhibit A, B and C respectively].

PRESENTATION- Canal Dredging Project-Tom Bennett, Project Manager

The Project Manager stated due to the change in methodology and site location, a permit modification is
needed and review by the proper agencies has begun. He introduced Eric Wainwright of Byrd Brothers,
and Bob Wilson of Row Boat Dock and Dredge. He stated he has had a positive experience working with
them in planning for the completion of Phase I of the dredging.

Mr. Wainwright provided some background experience on his company’s capabilities and stated a team
agreement had been signed with Sampson in order to fmd a consultant to design a solution to the current
canal dredging project. Bob Wilson of Row Boat Dock and Dredge has become involved in this process.
Mr. Wilson provided an educational Power Point presentation for the upcoming dredging process.

Following his presentation, Mr. Wilson stated if all goes right and permits are granted, dredging can begin
in October with some preparation beginning earlier. The process proposed is different from using geobags
and will have less impact than the previously used hydrocyclonic process. He stated having available
property provided by local property owners makes this process possible. He stated this is a fried and
proven technology. As soon as permits are received, equipment can start being prepared. He stated
17,000 cubic yards of spoil can be dredged and disposed of in a few months.

Mr. Wilson stated CAMA is working cooperatively with the Town. Water and material sampling has
been done and there appears to be no problems.

Following the presentation, Mayor Denny asked if the spoil containment area would be manned 24 hours
a day. Mr. Wilson said there would be one safety person and another person on duty at all times.

Mayor Denny thanked the Ecks, who were present, for allowing the Town to use their property for the
spoil disposal site.

[Clerk’s Note: A copy of the Power Point presentation can be found on the Town’s website].

REPORTS -None

PROPOSED FY2O1O-2011 BUDGET

Mayor Denny stated that at the last meeting Council had directed the Town Manager to prepare the
FY 2010-2011 budget ordinance. Today the ordinance is being presented. Mayor Denny moved to adopt
the Town’s FY 2010-2011 Budget Ordinance 2010-06-01 as presented showing a $6,404,650 budget with
14 cents on each one hundred dollars ($100) valuation of taxable property. Of this tax rate 3 cents or
approximately $516, 000 shall be designated for transfer to the capital reserve fUnd for Capital Projects
indentified in the 2010-2011 Capital Improvement Plan. Council Member Hess seconded. The motion
passed with Mayor Denny, Hess and Kowalski voting aye and Council Members Stroud and Pfizenmayer
voting no.

Mayor Denny asked for a clarification in Section VI. of the ordinance relating to the Town Manager’s
authority to increase salaries. The Town Manager stated that language was previously used, that he
understood it, but that it could be amended at Council’s request. No change was made.

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 15, 2010
Page 2 of9



[Clerk’s Note: A copy of the 2010-06-OlBudget Ordinance is hereby attached as Exhibit D].

OLD BUSiNESS

Aj,pointment of Plairning Board Members-Nancy Wendt and Robert Palombo

Member terms to expire June 30, 2010 and are up for re-appointthent for a three-year term to the Planning
Board.

Mayor Denny moved to re-appoint Robert Palombo for a three-year term. Council Member Hess
seconded. The motion passed with Mayor Denny and Council Members Hess, Kowalski, Stroud and
Pfizenmayer voting aye.

Mayor Denny moved to re-appoint Nancy Wendt for a three-year term. Council Member Pfizenmayer
seconded. The motion passed with Mayor Denny and Council Members Kowalski, Stroud and
Pfizenmayer voting aye, and Council Member Hess voting no.

NEW BUSINESS - None

OTHER ITEMS

Town Manager

The Town Manager stated it is his fifth day on the job. He thanked Webb Fuller and Chief Kole on
helping him through the transition. He has been reading existing policies, interlocal agreements and
contracts for the service providers. He has been evaluating administration and looking at the status on
what challenges lie ahead. He has met with the Department Heads, the Fire Chief and Ocean Rescue
Director. He will be meeting with the firemen and met with the lifeguards. He has met with the County
Manager and the other Town Managers, the Town Attorney and the Auditor. He has met with Tom
Bennett to be brought up to date on the canal dredging project.

Town Attorney-None

Mayor-None

Council

Council Member Kowalski asked that the Town’s FY 2010-201 lBudget Ordinance and the entire line
item budget be put on the Town’s website. The Town Manager stated it will be placed on the website.

Council Member Pfizenmayer welcomed the new Town Manager.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Sam Williams, 109 Pudding Pan Lane, stated he previously addressed Council on the approval process for
the Town’s Land Use Plan. He reminded the Council Members to submit their comments so the Land
Use Plan could be submitted for Council approval at either the July 6 or the October 5 Council meetings.
This will allow time to submit the plan to CAMA by February 2011.

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 15, 2010
Page 3 of9



Mayor Denny moved to go into closed session pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11 (a)(3) to consult with the
Town Attorney on the attorney/client privilege. Council Member Hess seconded. The motion passed with
Mayor Denny, Council Members Hess, Kowaiski, Stroud and Pfizenmayer voting aye.

Upon returning to open session and hearing no other business Mayor Denny moved to adjourn at 10:10
a.m. Council Member Hess seconded. The motion passed with Mayor Denny, Hess, Stroud, Pfizemnayer
and Kowaiski voting aye.

Mayor Denny moved to rati~’ and repeated his motion to adjourn at 10:10 a.m. (due to the door not being
opened following the closed session) Council Member Hess seconded. The motion passed with Mayor
Denny, Hess, SI and Kowaiski voting aye.

Respectfully submitted:

Carrie Gordin, Town Clerk

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 15, 2010
Page 4 of9



Exhibit A

Town of Southern Shores
Budget Amendment Number # 18

Administration
Increases

Aaount Numbe Descwictio.. Amount

Revenues
40-39909 Undesignated FB $5,000.00

ExDenditures
42-50124 Computer Services $5,000.00

Administration
Decreases

A~unt Nunte DesatDt~n Amount

Explanation: To cover costs of an additional workstation,wireless access and Sonicwall

Recommended By: Approved By:

3. Peter Rascoe, III Hal Denny, Mayor

Date

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 15, 2010
Page 5 of9



Exhibit B
Town of Southern Shores

Budget Amendment Number # 19

Administration
Increases

Administration
Decreases

Recommended By: Approved By:

J. Peter Rascoe, UI Hal Denny, Mayor

Date

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 15, 2010
Page 6 of9

A~jnt Numbs Desa~don Amount A~ant Numba D~sa~6o.i AmOWTt

Revenues

40-39909 Undesignated FB $25,000.00

ExDenditures
42-50104 Legal Services $25,000.00

Explanation: To cover attorney fees



Exhibit C

TOWN OF
SOUTHERN

SHORES
TAX

DEPARTMENT

6/1512010

PICKUPS RELEASES
March Vehicle $8.59
April
Vehicle $30.24
April Real $80.43
May
Vehicle $7.62

TOTAL $0.00 $126.88

Exhibit D
Ordinance No. 2010-06-01

An Ordinance of the Southern Shores
Town Council

Adopting a Budget and Tax Rate for FY 2010-2011

BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Southern Shores, North Carolina that the
following be the budget for F’? 2010-11:

SECtION I. GENERAL FUND

A. Appropriations: The following amounts are appropriated for the operation of the Town
government and its activities for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2010 and ending June 30,
2011:

Administration Department $ 798,950
Code Enforcement & Inspections Department $ 281,755
Fire Department $ 523,000
Ocean Rescue $ 148,000
Police Department $ 1,315,745
Public Works Department $ 2,289,200
Sanitation Department $ 532,000
Contribution to Capital Reserve Fund ~ 516,000

Total General Fund Appropriations $ 6,404,650
Town ofSouthern Shores, NC

Council Meeting
June 15, 2010

Page 7 of9



B. Estimated Revenues: It is estimated that the following revenues will be available during the
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2010 and ending June 30, 2011 to meet foregoing appropriations:

Property Taxes- Current Year $ 2,410,000
Vehicle Taxes- Current Year $ 40,000
Property & Vehicle Taxes- Prior Years, Penalties and Interest S 9,800
Subtotal: Property and Vehicle Taxes $ 2,459,800

Land Transfer $ 125,000
Local Option Sales Tax $ 525,000
Occupancy Tax $ 665,000
Other Intergovernmental Revenues $ 423,500
Building Permits & Fees $ 61,100
Lease purchase proceeds $ 110,250
Canal dredging grant $ 750,000
Other Revenues $ 44,000
Powell Bill Fund Balance Appropriated $ 201,737
Transfer from Capital Reserve fund $ 1,001,000
Undesignated Fund Balance Appropriated $ 38,263

Total General Fund Revenues $ 6,404,650

SECtION II. CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

Appropriations Authorized:

Transfer to General Fund 5 1,001,000

TOTAL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND APPROPRIATIONS $ 1,001,000

Revenues Anticipated:

Transfer from General Fund $ 516,000
Capital Reserve Fund Balance Appropriated S 485,000

TOTAL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND REVENUES $ 1,001,000

SECTION IlL TAX RATE ESTABLISHED

There is hereby levied a property tax of fourteen cents ($0.14) on each one hundred dollars ($100)
valuation of taxable property in the Town of Southern Shores, as listed for taxes for the current year by
the Dare County Tax Department. Three cents ($0.03), or approximately $ 516,000 of this total
is designated for transfer to the capital reserve fund for Capital Projects identified in the 2010-2011
Capital Improvement Plan attached hereto.

SECTION IV. AMENDMENT TO CAPITAL RESERVE FUND RESOLUTION

The resolution adopted March 6, 2007 creating the Capital Reserve Fund is hereby amended to include as
its purpose the funding of the projects identified in the 2010-2011 Capital Improvement Plan attached
hereto.

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 15, 2010
Page 8 of9



SECTION V. TOWN MANAGER TRANSFER AUTHORIZA11ON

The Town Manager shall be authorized to reallocate departmental appropriations among the various
objects of expenditures as he believes necessary and is also authorized to make interdepartmental
transfers, within the same fund, not to exceed 10% of the appropriated monies for the department
whose allocation is reduced.

SECTION VI. TOWN MANAGER RESTRICTIONS

Council must preauthorize the use of any contingency appropriations.

Other than salary increases in the budget document, no salary increases may be made without the
Council’s approval.

Appropriations from the Capital Reserve Fund can only be used for the purpose of Capital projects and
not for the use of meeting other departmental expenditures.

Interfund transfers that are not established in the budget document may be accomplished only with the
prior authorization of the Council.

SECTION VII. UTILIZATION OF BUDGET AND BUDGET ORDINANCE

This Ordinance and the Budget Document shall be the basis of the financial plan for the Town of
Southern Shores, North Carolina Municipal Government during the fiscal year 2010-11.

ADOPTED this 15th day of June, 2010

ATTEST: Mayor Hal Denny

SEAL.

Carrie Gordin, Town Clerk

Town ofSouthern Shores, NC
Council Meeting

June 15, 2010
Page9of9



BLANK





















































BLANK





























BLANK




























	1       Fire Service Memorandum of Agreement
	2       Fire Service Real Estate
	3        SSFVD-2009-to-2019 SERVICE CONTRACT
	4        MAY 12 MINUTES FY2010-2011 Requested Adjustment Deliberation
	5        JUNE 1 MINUTES FY 2010-2011 Requested Adjustment Deliberation
	6       Adjustment June 15, 2010 Budget Adoption
	7       SSVFD 2015-2016 BUDGET
	8       SSVFD 2016-2017 BUDGET
	9       SSVFD 2017-2018 BUDGET
	10     SSVFD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2015 AND JUNE 30, 2014
	11     SSVFD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2016 AND JUNE 30, 2015
	12     SSVFD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2017 AND JUNE 30, 2016
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



